
JOURNAL OF POLICE COMMISSION PROCEEDINGS 

Civic Center, 2 Park Drive South, City Commission Chambers 

December 15th, 2022 - - 9:00 AM 
 

 

Page 1 of 5 

 

 

CALL TO ORDER: 9:00 AM                                                            

 

ROLL CALL/STAFF INTRODUCTIONS: Police Commission members present: Morgan Kasuske, 

John Hackwith, and Tim Shanks.  Also present were Lt. Doug Mahlum and Applicant Jeremy Bohall   

 

 PETITIONS AND COMMUNICATIONS 

 None. 

 

OLD BUSINESS 

1. APPROVE September 26th,  2022 MEETING MINUTES.  

Commissioner Kasuske moved, seconded by Commissioner Shanks to accept the minutes from 

the September 26th, 2022 meeting.    

 

Motion carried 3-0 

 NEW BUSINESS 

1. POLICE COMMISSION’S EXAMINATION OF APPLICANT(S): DANIEL LAWSON 

FOR THE POLICE FORCE – GREAT FALLS POLICE DEPARTMENT. 

 

Lt. Mahlum stated that the application(s) of Daniel Lawson had been referred to the Police 

Commission.  Pursuant to Mont. Code Ann.  §7-32-4154, this meeting is an examination of the 

applicant as to their age, legal, mental, moral, and physical qualifications and their ability to fill 

the office as a member of the police force.   

 

Lt. Mahlum read the provisions of Mont. Code Ann. § 7-32-4151, that sets forth the role of the 

Police Commission; reviewed each item provided to the Commission members in their meeting 

packets; and, read the provisions of Mont. Code Ann. § 7-32-303, qualifications of law 

enforcement officers.  He explained that this meeting is for the Police Commission to review the 

documentation, conduct the examination of each applicant, and make a determination as to whether 

each applicant meets the qualifications of a law enforcement officer.     

 

He read the provisions of Mont. Code Ann. § 2-3-203(3).  He asked the applicant’s position with 

regard to right to privacy.  Applicant(s) Lawson asserted his rights to privacy. 

 

Lt. Mahlum noted that there is substantial value in having the examination confidential to have a 

frank and open discussion with the applicants and to gain an accurate view of qualifications to 

determine their ability to fill the office as a member of the police force.  Lt. Mahlum determined 

that each applicant(s) individual privacy clearly exceeded the merits of public disclosure, and 

closed the meeting for the Commission to conduct each applicant(s) examination in executive 

session. 



JOURNAL OF POLICE COMMISSION PROCEEDINGS 

Civic Center, 2 Park Drive South, City Commission Chambers 

December 15th, 2022 - - 9:00 AM 
 

 

Page 2 of 5 

 

At 9:06 AM members of the Commission and Lt. Mahlum, met in executive session in the City 

Commission Chambers for the purpose of the Commission conducting the examination of 

applicant(s), Daniel Lawson.     

 

-  -EXECUTIVE SESSION - - 

 

Applicant Daniel Lawson 

*Session began at 0906 hours and concluded at 0942 hours 

 

Commissioner Shanks began the executive session by asking Lawson how much law enforcement 

experience he had and how long his law enforcement certificate was good for after being out of 

law enforcement.   

 

Lawson stated he had about 12 years of law enforcement experience and that per the State of 

Indiana his Law Enforcement certificate never expires unless revoked.   

 

Commissioner Shanks asked Lt. Mahlum to clarify.  

 

Lt. Mahlum explained that Montana allows an officer to be out of service for up to three years 

before they would have to re-attend the Montana Law Enforcement Basic Class.   

 

Commissioner Shanks asked a hypothetical question to Lawson.  He asked what Lawson would do 

if while with this Field Training Officer(FTO) he witnessed the FTO pocket or steal something.   

 

Lawson responded that he would first approach the officer immediately, letting them know what 

he had witnessed and that it wasn’t appropriate.  He would then make them put it back and report 

it to his supervisor.   

 

Commissioner Shanks asked what he would do if it was his supervisor.  Lawson responded he 

would address it the same and go to leadership above the sergeant.  

 

Commissioner Shanks applied another hypothetical question asking Lawson how he would handle 

a DUI stop where he discovered the DUI driver was a GFPD Captain.   

 

Lawson stated he would contact a supervisor immediately and stated it couldn’t be something that 

was overlooked.  He would still handle it because it was important to do so.  Lawson provided an 

example of an Indiana Officer he had known who had began drinking heavily and the officer ended 

up killing someone.  Lawson thought it could have been handled better and earlier on and how 

important it was to do what is legal and right.   

 

Commissioner Shanks explained to Lawson that once he attends the Montana Law Enforcement 

Legal Equivalency school he may be looked at as a mentor and reiterated to him it was critically 



JOURNAL OF POLICE COMMISSION PROCEEDINGS 

Civic Center, 2 Park Drive South, City Commission Chambers 

December 15th, 2022 - - 9:00 AM 
 

 

Page 3 of 5 

 

important to the GFPD that he be on his best behavior at all times while at MLEA.  Commissioner 

Shanks provided an example of a previous officer who had been called into the Captain’s office on 

a Saturday because of poor behavior at MLEA.   

 

Commissioner Hackwith stated he was struggling to ask a question and asked Lawson if he had 

ever read the United States Constitution.  Lawson replied that he had.  Hackwith then asked if 

Lawson had read the Montana Constitution and Lawson stated he had not.  Hackwith commented 

that it was quite the read.  

 

Commissioner Hackwith asked Lawson what he would do if given an order that went against the 

Bill of Rights.  

 

Lawson responded with an example he had been challenged with while working with a previous 

agency.  The community he was working in had a reputation of racism.  He had investigated a 

disturbance between a separated boyfriend and girlfriend.  The boyfriend was black and the 

girlfriend white.  The disturbance was a simple complaint where the male thought the female had 

purposely damaged his property.  Lawson’s investigation discovered the female had appropriately 

made attempts to return property, a stereo, and the male for whatever reason didn’t pick it up.  

Eventually, the female appropriately gave notice that she was going to leave the stereo outside to 

be picked up.  Once the male picked up the property it had water damage on it.  Lawson’s 

investigation determined the complaint was civil in nature and did not file charges.  The male later 

contacted the Chief of Police who then ordered Lawson to charge the female.  Lawson felt the 

Chief was overlooking the facts of the case, because the male complainant was a black male.  With 

the support of his Sergeant, Lawson refused to charge the female.  Eventually the Chief filed the 

charges himself and obtained a warrant and then requested Lawson to make the arrest.  Lawson 

still refused the order.  The case was eventually dismissed.  Lawson reiterated that if he was asked 

to do something illegal, by anyone, his answer would be no.  

 

Commissioner Kasuske asked Lt. Mahlum if the applicants see their interview scores.  Lt. Mahlum 

stated they do not.  Kasuske stated he thought Lawson’s interview scores were fairly low, and asked 

Lawson if he had struggled with the interview.   

 

Lawson stated he historically hasn’t done well on scored interviews, and often times talks too 

much.  

 

Commissioner Shanks asked Lawson what his intentions were at the GFPD and if he could see 

himself working 20 year or more.  

 

Lawson stated his main goal was to get on the GFPD and learn the city and department.  He has 

hopes of getting on the HRU Team at some point.  He enjoys training and would love to obtain a 

training position.  He sees himself doing 25 years with the GFPD.  He explained that he’s seen 

younger officers make critical mistakes in their careers and really wants to help people avoid these 



JOURNAL OF POLICE COMMISSION PROCEEDINGS 

Civic Center, 2 Park Drive South, City Commission Chambers 

December 15th, 2022 - - 9:00 AM 
 

 

Page 4 of 5 

 

mistakes through training.  He stated he wants to move forward with the GFPD and help our agency 

improve our positive reputation.  

 

Commissioner Shanks asked Lawson if he could see himself working towards promotions in the 

GFPD and what his family’s thoughts were on him returning to law enforcement.   Lawson stated 

he would seek promotion in the future and his family is very supportive of him returning to law 

enforcement.  When they first visited Great Falls as a family they fell in love with the city.   

 

Commissioner Shanks stated that Montana was in the 9th Circuit court, which was very different 

from other Circuit Courts.  Commissioner Hackwith commented that when he had attended FLETC 

(Federal Law Enforcement Training Center) they couldn’t believe the rulings in the 9th Circuit.  

 

Commissioner Hackwith asked Lawson about his “Poor” interview skills and if he was good with 

suspect interviews.   

 

Lawson stated he was very good with suspect interviews and viewed them completely different.  

Lawson gave an example of a time he obtained a confession on a sex case on the suspect’s door 

step.   

 

Hearing no further questioning from the Commissioners the Executive Session was closed.  

   

The Executive Session came to close at 9:37 AM.   

  

The meeting reconvened in an open meeting in the City Commission chambers at 9:38 AM.   

 

Lt. Mahlum summarized the Commission’s examination of the applicant(s) for the police force; 

that the Commission reviewed the background of the applicant(s); and, that Daniel Lawson, meets 

the age, legal, mental, moral and physical qualifications and they are eligible to be members of the 

Great Falls Police Department. 

 

Commissioner Shanks moved, seconded by Commissioner Hackwith, that the Police 

Commission approve of applicant, Daniel Lawson, for hiring consideration as member of the 

Great Falls Police Department. 

 

Lt. Mahlum asked if there was any public comment.  Hearing none, Lt. Mahlum asked if there was 

any further discussion among the Commissioners.   

 

There being no further discussion, Lt. Mahlum called for the vote. 

 

Motion carried 3-0. 

All three Commissioners signed the certificate authorizing Daniel Lawson to become a 

member(s) of the Great Falls Police Department.  



JOURNAL OF POLICE COMMISSION PROCEEDINGS 

Civic Center, 2 Park Drive South, City Commission Chambers 

December 15th, 2022 - - 9:00 AM 
 

 

Page 5 of 5 

 

 

 

 

ADJOURNMENT  

 There being no further business to come before the Commission, Commissioner Shanks moved 

to adjourn, seconded by Commissioner Hackwith, to adjourn the meeting of December 15th 

at 9:42 AM.   

 

Motion carried 3-0.  

_________________________________ 

                                             Lt. Doug Mahlum, Acting Secretary 

 

Minutes Approved: _______________, 2023 

 

 

Minutes approved 3/30/23  Lt. Doug Mahlum, Acting Secretary 


